MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MONDAY, 28 JULY 2008, AT 7.30PM, HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CIVIC CENTRE, WOOD GREEN.

PRESENT: Councillor Gideon Bull (Chair), Councillor Ronald Aitken, Councillor Ray Dodds,

Councillor Pat Egan, Councillor David Winskill.

MINUTE	SUBJECT/DECISION
NO.	

OSCO25	WEBCASTING		
000023.	WEBCASTING		
	Due to technical difficulties this meeting was not Webcast.		
OSCO26.	APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE		
	Apologies for absence were received from the following:		
	Councillor Gina Adamou Councillor Karen Alexander -Councillor Davies substituted. Ms Felicity Kally (Parent Governor)		
OSCO27.	. URGENT BUSINESS		
	No items of Urgent Business were raised.		
OSCO28.	B. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST		
	Councillor Egan declared a Personal interest in respect of agenda Item 6 and Councillor Davies declared a personal interest in respect of agenda Items 7 and 8.		
OSCO29.	. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/PRESENTATIONS/QUESTIONS		
	None were received.		
OSCO30.	CABINET MEMBER QUESTIONS: CABINET MEMBER FOR RESOURCES		
	The Committee received written answers to questions put to the Cabinet Member for Resources prior to the meeting.		
	The questions and answers supplied are attached in full at Appendix 1.		
	The Chair noted that a new process for submitting questions had been introduced and requested that Members of the Committee only put supplementary questions to the Cabinet Member for Resources.		
	Question 1		
	The Cabinet Member agreed to keep the Committee informed of any variations to		

Question 8

It was agreed that a list of the campaigns aimed at increasing Benefit take up should be circulated to the Committee.

Question 14

Concern was raised in relation to plans for the Hornsey Depot site and progression in relation to these.

It was agreed that the Committee should be advised when a report, setting out options for alternative sites for recycling facility currently situated in Hornsey, would be available.

Question 16

It was recognised that Fuel Poverty affected residents across the whole of the Borough and suggested that there should be a campaign to promote the benefits available to assist those in need.

Question 17

It was noted that the Scrutiny Review of Fly Tipping had included a recommendation that an audit of marginal land in the Borough should be undertaken to assess their potential for use as parks or allotments.

It was suggested that the Cabinet Members for Recourses and Leisure, Culture and Lifelong Learning, should liaise regarding this issue and that there should be an audit of the small pieces of land within the Borough.

Councillor Winskill requested that a report should be commissioned by the Cabinet Member for Resources examining the impact of the 'credit crunch' on the Council's ability to work with Partners to deliver existing and new social housing projects (particularly with regard to the Hornsey Depot site) and impact this may have upon Section 106 Agreements.

Question 18

The Committee discussed the reserves that would be built up over the next two years and was advised by the Cabinet Member that it was recognised best practice for Councils to have a reserve of at least £10M.

The Committee discussed the decision to move the Council's bank account and in response to a query as to whether consideration had been given to the Bank's ethical policies when it was selected, the Committee was advised that this was built into the selection process.

It was requested that information should be supplied to the Committee around the criteria used to ensure that Bank used by the Council employed ethical policies.

RESOLVED:

- i. That the answers supplied in relation to Members questions be noted.
- ii. That, where further information had been requested by the Committee, this should be supplied.

OSCO31. MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES - UPDATE

The Committee received a report that provided an update on the provision of Mental Health Services in the Borough.

A presentation was made by key members of the Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Mental Health Trust (BEH MHT), the Council and Primary Care Trust (PCT), responsible for providing Mental Health Services. This was followed by a statement from a local Service User.

The Chair thanked representatives for the presentation and noted that it was particularly useful to receive representations from a Service User. He requested that the Committee be kept informed of developments in relation to the St Ann's site and the consultation process with the public and Service Users.

There was agreement that a well coordinated approach between the MHT, PCT and Council, was key to improving the provision of services and it was noted that work was being carried out at present to achieve this.

In response to issues raised by Councillor Aitken the Board was advised that the MHT and PCT intended participate in the upcoming Scrutiny Review. The first meeting, being held on 2 September would be used to launch the public consultation exercise in relation to the closure of Finsbury Ward.

Councillor Aitken also raised concern at the lack of coordination between Mental Health Services and Housing Services and noted that this often exacerbated problems experienced by Service Users. The Committee was advised that this was often due to lack of capacity and it was acknowledged that better integrated services could alleviate some of the difficulties caused by a lack of appropriate housing.

It was requested that details of the case referred to by Councillor Aitken should be passed on to the PCT for follow up.

The Chair noted that there may have been some confusion around the item and clarified that this was intended as an update in Mental Health Services rather than a focussed look at the redevelopment of the St Ann's site. This would form a separate item and would be considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in September. He noted that there would be an opportunity for members of the public to participate in discussion at this meeting.

RESOLVED:

- i. That the presentations provided be noted.
- ii. That concerns raised by Councillor Aitken, with respect to a individual case involving accessing the Crisis Team, be discussed with the PCT outside

the meeting.

iii. That a further meeting should be held in September that would focus on the proposals for the redevelopment of the St Ann's site.

OSCO32.

PROPOSAL BY HARINGEY LEARNING DISABILITIES PARTNERSHIP - CHANGING SERVICES AND IMPROVING OUTCOMES FOR ADULTS WITH LEARNING DISABILITIES WHO ALSO HAVE MENTAL HEALTH ISSUES OR BEHAVIOUR THAT CHALLENGES SERVICES

The Committee received a report that set out proposals from the Learning Disabilities Partnership in relation to changes to the Services currently provided for adults with learning disabilities.

It was proposed that a model of enhanced support should be developed that would enable people to remain in their local community and minimise the need for hospital based provision.

The Committee was reminded that there was a statutory requirement upon the NHS to consult with the public and patients and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 'substantial developments' to Services. However, the Partnership did not consider that the proposals constituted a substantial variation and therefore the Committee did not have the right of referral, which was within its gift when a substantial variation was proposed.

The Committee was advised that the new model would provide additional services such as psychology, occupational therapy and community nursing. Five additional rehabilitation and respite services would also be provided as part of the new model.

Concern was expressed at the proposed closure of Mulberry House and it was contended that the proposals formed a substantial variation to Services.

The Committee was reminded that the closure of Mulberry House formed one element of the overall package of proposals. Given that the building did not have the appropriate facilities required it was considered that it was appropriate, as part of the overall package of proposals, to close this facility. It was noted that the new model had been driven by clinical need and the type of services delivered by Mulberry House were not found in other Boroughs.

In response to concerns raised with the future of current residents of Mulberry House, the Committee was advised that 'Move On' Plans were in place for each resident and their needs would be assessed on a clinical basis and addressed appropriately.

The Chair noted that there would be a separate Overview and Scrutiny meeting where the redevelopment of the St Ann's site would be discussed. There would be an opportunity for members of the public to participate in discussion at this meeting.

The Committee discussed the proposals further and concern was raised that the Committee had not been made aware of plans to close Mulberry House prior to

the meeting. The Board was advised that there had been consultation with stakeholders had taken place.

The Committee was of the view that that, on the basis of the evidence presented, the proposals constituted a "substantial variation" to local health services, as specified under Section 7 of the Health and Social Care Act 2001. This was due to the potential effects on patients and the change in the method of service delivery that the proposal entailed. As such, the Committee considered that it should be subject to a period of formal consultation, in order to ensure that all relevant stakeholders were given the opportunity to respond.

RESOLVED:

That the proposals be considered to constitute a substantial variation to local health services and therefore subject to formal consultation with the Committee.

OSCO33. CABINET MEMBER QUESTIONS: CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE

The Committee received written answers to questions put to the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People prior to the meeting.

The questions and answers supplied are attached in full at Appendix 2.

Question 4

In response to a query the Committee was advised that unqualified teachers were able to teach certain areas of the curriculum without restriction.

Question 1

In response to concerns that a decision had been taken, without consultation, to introduce knife detection equipment into schools, the Committee was advised by the Cabinet Member that the Protocol in relation to this was in draft form. Once finalised it would be circulated to school governing bodies, teachers, parents and the Police.

The Cabinet Member noted that it was intended that the protocol would be introduced, following sign up from secondary schools, in September as part of the Peace Week activities. In response to a query as to why Members had not been consulted on this issue the Cabinet Member advised it had been considered that this was a decision for schools to make. Although Members would be kept informed of progress in relation to it had not been considered necessary to formally consult with Members on this issue.

Question 2

The Cabinet Member advised that schools had been warned that there would be a limited timescale in place for agreeing the new ICT contracts and the majority had now signed been signed off.

In addition to the questions circulated prior to the meeting, the Chair allowed a limited number of additional questions.

In response to a question as to the number of schools that employed external invigilators to oversee SAT exams, the Committee was advised that external invigilators were not used for Key Stage 2. Each year a selection of schools were selected for external invigilation on a rolling basis, over a ten year period. It was agreed that information in relation to this would be circulated to the Committee.

The Committee was advised that following national press reports that exam papers had been marked incorrectly the marking of exam papers had been reviewed. This had shown that there were instances where marking had not been consistent and at present the Director of Children's Services was consulting with colleagues across London to determine how widespread the problem was.

It was agreed that details of the number of teaching staff subject to disciplinary action, or who had resigned as a result of statutory concerns, should be supplied to the Committee.

In response to concerns at the lack of provision of activities for young people living in Tower Gardens during the summer holidays, the Committee was advised that the expansion of the Summer University scheme meant that funding for activities had been distributed differently this year. The Committee was advised that this issue had been noted and work was being carried out to provide youth facilities from smaller centres.

It was agreed that a list of the youth activities taking place over the summer should be circulated to all Members.

A question was put to the Cabinet Member by Councillor John Oakes in relation to the new process in place for youth groups applying for funding from the Council. The Cabinet Member advised that it was necessary for groups to register before funding could be applied for as the process was now administered by the Youth Opportunities Fund.

The Cabinet Member agreed to supply a written response to the concerns raised by Councillor Oakes.

RESOLVED:

- i. That the answers supplied in relation to Members questions be noted.
- ii. That, where further information had been requested by the Committee, this should be supplied.

OSCO34. BUILDING SCHOOLS FOR THE FUTURE: OVERALL PLAN AND UPDATE ON POSITION

The Committee received a report that provided an summary of Haringey's Building Schools for the Future (BSF) programme, including its aims and objectives.

In terms of the Governance arrangements supporting the BSF Programme, the Committee was advised that the BSF Programme Board met on a fortnightly basis

and that this was constituted of senior officers from both the Council and the BSF team. In addition, the BSF Team also worked closely with the Procurement Committee and Schools Transformation Board to ensure that the Programme was progressed through the Council's decision making processes correctly.

In response to a query the Committee was advised that the new Heartlands High School would be completed in September 2010.

There was a general consensus that the progress of the BSF Programme had not been communicated to Ward Members effectively and that further ways of engaging Ward Members should be considered. It was agreed that this issue should be discussed further with the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People.

In response to a query as to whether the BSF Programme took into consideration the aims of the Council's Greenest Borough Strategy, it was confirmed that it did. It was agreed that a further report should be brought to the Committee providing more detail in relation to this.

RESOLVED:

- i. That the report be noted.
- ii. That a report should be received a future meeting setting out how the BSF Programme reflected the aims and objectives of the Greenest Borough Strategy.

OSCO35. UPDATE: EXTENDED SERVICES IN AND AROUND SCHOOLS

The Committee received a report that provided an update on progress in relation to the recommendations arising from the Overview and Scrutiny review of Extended Services in 2007.

The Committee discussed progress against the recommendation that partnership arrangements should be developed between Highgate and Channing Schools. It was noted that two pupils from schools in the west of the Borough had taken part in the Oxbridge Tuition sessions.

There was a general consensus that potential candidates attending schools in the east of the Borough should be encouraged to participate in the Oxbridge Tuition sessions. There was agreement that the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People would raise this issue in her capacity as a Governor of Haringey Sixth Form Centre and underline the support available for young people in the Borough applying for Oxbridge Universities.

RESOLVED:

- i. That progress made in relation to each recommendations contained within the Overview and Scrutiny Review of Extended Services be noted.
- ii. That the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People should highlight the support available for young people in the Borough applying for

Oxbridge places at the next Governors meeting of Haringev Sixth Form Centre. OSCO36. SCHOOL PLACES PLANNING REPORT The Committee considered a report setting out what action was being taken to meet demand for pupil places in Haringey's Primary, Secondary and Special Schools. The report set out the recommendations that would be considered by Cabinet, which included several statutory actions and a detailed work programme for the year ahead. The data collected suggested that by 2011 there would be a shortfall in the number of reception places available in the west of the Borough and therefore it was proposed that Rhodes Avenue Primary School should be expanded to include an additional form of entry. In response to a query as to how the data reflected the expansion of local areas in terms of planning and the areas already designated for housing under the Unitary Development Plan (UDP), the Committee was advised that, the data was collected via the Planning Department and therefore this was incorporated. The Committee was advised that the education element of the Section 106 Agreement attached to the Hale Wharf development would not become available until the development had been completed. **RESOLVED:** That the recommendations to the Cabinet, set out within the report, be endorsed. SCRUTINY REVIEW ON NEIGHBOURHOOD MANAGEMENT SERVICES OSCO37. **RESOLVED:** That, due time constraints, this item should be deferred until the next meeting. OSCO38. **MINUTES RESOLVED:** That the minutes of the meeting held on 30 June 2008 be confirmed as a correct record. OSCO39. **NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS** No new items of Urgent Business were received.

<i>,</i> ,	\sim	NIP
١.	110	111

The meeting closed at 10pm.